ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 14, 2005
1:33 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Gary W/l ken, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda G een

Senat or Kim El ton

Senat or Donny d son

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 83

"An Act relating to the retaining of certain privileges of a
parent in a relinquishnment and termi nation of a parent and child
rel ationship proceeding; relating to eligibility for permanent
fund dividends for certain children in the custody of the state;
relating to child in need of aid proceedings and juvenile
del i nquency proceedi ngs; and providing for an effective date.™

MOVED SB 83 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO 82

"An Act relating to child protection, including forensic
interviews and transportation of children; and providing for an
effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 83

SHORT TI TLE: TERM PARENTAL RTS/ Cl NA/ DELI NQUENCY CASES
SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 26/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 05 (S) HES, JUD

02/ 14/ 05 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 82

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- February 14, 2005



SHORT TI TLE: CHI LD PROTECTI ON | NTERVI EW TRANSPORT
SPONSCR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 26/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 05 (S) HES, JUD
02/ 14/ 05 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Stacie Kraly, Senior Assistant Attorney General
Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 83 and SB 82.

Mar ci a Kenna

Department of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 83 and SB 82.

Scott Cal der
Fai r banks, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: QOpposes SB 83 and SB 82.

Betty Rollins
Fai r banks, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: QOpposes SB 83 and SB 82.

Rosemary Hagevi g

Cat holic Comrunity Services

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 82.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R FRED DYSON called the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 1:33:10 PM
Present were Senators Kim Elton, Lyda Geen and Chair Fred

Dyson.

SB 83- TERM PARENTAL RTS/ Cl NA/ DELI NQUENCY CASES

CHAI R DYSON announced SB 83 to be up for consideration.

1: 34: 29 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 14, 2005



STACI E KRALY, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of
Law (DCOL) thanked the conmttee for the opportunity to present
SB 83. SB 83 relates to child protection systens. Specific
provisions include a proposal to anend AS 25.23.180 to permt
parents to relinquish their parental rights while retaining
certain privileges such as ongoi ng conmuni cation and visitation.
SB 83 adds |anguage to AS 43.23.005 which allows for children
pl aced tenporarily outside of the State of Al aska, but who are
in custody through either the Ofice of Children’ s Services
(OCS) or the Dvision of Juvenile Justice (DJJ), to maintain
their eligibility to receive their Permanent Fund Dividend
(PFD) .

1: 36: 45 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Kraly if she was referring to Section 2.

M5. KRALY answered yes. Sections 3 and 4 of SB 83 provide
| anguage to AS 47.10.020, which clarifies the existing law to
allow OCS to obtain wit of assistance from the courts in
investigating reports of harm in other child related matters.
The second conponent of the section clarifies that the DOL or
OCS is not required to obtain authorization fromthe court prior
to initiating an investigation on a report of harm

CHAIR DYSON asked if the «clarification involves getting a
war r ant .

M5. KRALY answered yes.

1:38: 31 PM

MS. KRALY said Sections 5 and 6 would allow the DOL to di spense
with sone of the evidentiary formalities in a court hearing and
would allow the DOL to create an offer of proof to the court
that it would be contrary to the welfare of the child to be
returned to an absent parent. Section 5 creates a |limted
evidentiary prem se for absent and unl ocateabl e parents.

1:40: 10 PM

The final provision of SB 83 relates to anmending the term of
mental health professional to allow an out of state professiona
to testify on behalf of an Al askan child who is placed out of
state, but who is in state custody.

SENATOR OLSON j oi ned the conmittee at 1:41.

1:41:56 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 14, 2005



SENATOR GREEN asked Ms. Kraly to describe the out of state
facilities where children are being pl aced.

M5. KRALY said the placenment facilities are out of state
residential psychiatric treatnent facilities. They are the types
of residential secure facilities that do not currently exist in
Al aska.

SENATOR GREEN nentioned her concern about the acceptability of
allowing out of state nental health professionals to testify on
behal f of Al askan chil dren.

M5. KRALY said if a child has been at an out of state facility,
the professionals at that facility probably know the child best,
but under the current law, they cannot testify on behalf of that
child in Al aska as an expert w tness.

1:43.52 PM

SENATOR GREEN said elimnating the requirenment of a conmttee
referral mght affect the state's ability to independently
assess whether or not these children should return to Al aska.
She said that she was concerned about deferring this ability to
an out of state organization that has an interest in maintaining
it’s cliental.

MS. KRAILY said this statutory change would only relate to those
children who are in state custody. The OCS goes through a
t horough process to make a determnation that a child needs
secure residential psychiatric treatnent. Then the superior
court nust approve the placenent of that child after it reviews
expert testinony on the case. By statute, every 90 days the
child nmust cone back before the superior court for an additional
revi ew.

SENATOR GREEN asked whether a child who |eaves Alaska falls
under Medicaid after 90 days.

M5. KRAILY answered they do.

SENATOR GREEN remarked the state put children on Medicaid and
children in state custody in the sanme classification; so it
should not nake any difference whether a child starts out in
state custody and ends up on Medicaid. She asked if this bill
woul d af fect children on Medi cai d.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- February 14, 2005



M5. KRALY answered no. It would require an internal review
within the DOL to ensure the child still meets medical necessity
to mai ntain Medi caid paynents.

SENATOR GREEN renmarked that review boards in other states do not
have the same commttee concept of Alaska and this has created
difficulties. She said that she wants to be sure that this bill
does not further contribute to these difficulties.

MS. KENNAI, Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS) said
SB 83 only refers to children under custody, who consequently
have been through a long review process. The bill does not refer
to private-pay children at all

1:49: 47 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked the jurisdiction of a child placed out of
state transfers to the new state if the parent or guardian of
the child |l eaves the state. He noted under the provisions of the
Permanent Fund Dividend statutes, one nust denonstrate one's
intent to return to the State of Alaska and it would be
difficult for a parent or guardian who |eaves the state to
denonstrate their child' s intent to return.

M5. KENNAI said no, the child is in the custody of the State of
Al aska. If a parent noves out of state and the child returns to
the State of Alaska, a hearing is held to either reunify the two
or to relinquish custody. In either case, the PFD trust follows
t he child.

SENATOR ELTON said it seens that if the state relinquishes
custody and there is no one in the state for whom to assign
custody, the child nmay be rel eased to soneone outside the state.

1:53: 05 PM

MS. KENNAI acknowl edged that although it could happen, it would
only happen rarely. In any event a permanent fund dividend in
trust for that child would go wherever that child goes.

CHAI R DYSON asked if Section 2 is subject to a best interest
finding by the court.

M5. KRALY answered yes. It is also subject to a determi nation by
the foster or adoptive parent.

CHAI R DYSON referred to the | ast sentence of Section 1 and asked
Ms. Kraly to clarify what the | anguage neans.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 14, 2005



M5. KRALY said it neans that a parent's failure to utilize a
certain privilege is not sufficient to invalidate his
rel i nqui shnment .

1:55: 53 PM
CHAI R DYSON said he reads it to say the relinquishnment may not
be wi thdrawn or invalidated.

M5. KRALY advi sed she would | ook at it again.

SENATOR GREEN asked, “In the decision naking of best interest,
do you open yourself to determ nations, appeals, and |lawsuits
froma parent who is not pleased with the court’s best interest
findi ngs?”

M5. KRALY admitted it was always a possibility and added the
parent has a right to appeal a decision by the court. The
current status of the law says you can have no conditional
relinqui shments. She noted that there are not very nany appeals
for relinquishment rulings.

1:59:17 PM
SCOIT CALDER, Fairbanks resident, stated his concern that the
term relinquishment is used in such a way that it makes the

process seem voluntary despite other language in the bill which
indicates that it is not always voluntary. He said that the
| anguage of the bill conflicts with the 4th anmendnment rights of
children and parents since it allows seizure wthout due
pr ocess. He suggested replacing the term "reasonable search”
with "diligent search” on page 2, section 5 lines 7 to 10. He

suggested including an explicit definition of the word
"diligent” in the bill

2:04:49 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked whether the term "diligent"” is a term of art
in the legal field.

MS. KRALY answered it is not.

The prem se through which the departnent can establish
proceedi ng agai nst an absent parent through the court
rules is very prescribed. There are due process
requi renents for those kinds of proceedings. W have
to provide notice to parents and relatives. If we are
| ooking for a termnation prescription we have to file
a petition wth the court. W nmake extraordinary
efforts to find parents and if we can't find them

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 14, 2005



then per the Cvil Rules, we nust conduct a diligent
inquiry. We file an affidavit with the court and ask
the court for permssion to provide service by
publication, which is authorized under GCvil Rule 4 of

the Code of Civil Procedure rules. If the parent is
still not found after publication, we provide the
court wth an affidavit of diligent inquiry to

establish that the parent is not |ocatable. This would
include an affidavit from the social worker involved
in the case, a departnent paralegal, a departnent
attorney, who will indicate that they have worked with
child enforcenent, the state troopers, the departnent
of corrections, the local police, et cetera. W have
to present all of that to the court before the court

will agree that the parent is unlocateable. It's not a
term of art, but a reasonable search is not just a
social worker saying, "Wll, we can't find thenf, or

an attorney standing up and saying, "W can't find
them W have to go through a very thorough process
through the civil rules to establish that.

2:07: 13 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked whether that was established in Al aska court
rul es.

MS. KRALY answered it was established in the Child In Need of
Aid (CINA) and Civil Rules.

MR. CALDER agreed with the aforenentioned explanation and asked
if there could be sone reference made to it in SB 83.

CHAI R DYSON advi sed he would send a note with SB 83 so that the
Judiciary Commttee could consider it.

2:08:57 PM

BETTY ROLLINS, Fairbanks resident, testified in agreenent wth
M. Calder. She expressed concern with Section 1 and asked if it
negated case |law that says the child shall becone a stranger to
the biological famly. She shared Senator Dyson's hesitation
over the last section because it has no teeth. She disagreed
with the assertion in section 4 saying the court would order an
i nvestigation, since she has never seen a court order any type
of investigation.

2:10: 06 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- February 14, 2005



SENATOR WLKEN noved SB 83 out of commttee wth individual
reconmendati ons and zero fiscal note. There being no objections,
the notion carried.

SB 82- CH LD PROTECTI ON | NTERVI EW TRANSPORT

CHAI R DYSON announced SB 82 to be up for consideration.

2:15:23 PM
STACI E KRALY, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of
Law, (DOL) introduced SB 82.

This legislation wuld allow the DOL and Ofice of
Child Services (OCS) to transport a child for nedica
exam nation and or forensic interview w thout parental
consent in cases where the departnment has reasonable
cause to suspect that a child has been severely
physically or sexually abused. Interviews of children
who appear to have suffered severe physical or sexual
abuse would be conducted in an appropriate environnent
that is not threatening to the child.

It is not al ways possible to obtain parental
cooperation to transport a child for exam nation and
interview This bill considers that «children are
usually transported to an advocacy center, which are
desi gned to be saf e, neutral, child-friendly
environnents where children can be interviewed by
professionals with special training in those areas.
They are also designed to mnimze the nunber of
interviews in an effort to mnimze the trauma of the
child as nuch as possible. This bill i ncl udes
notifying a non-offending parent, when appropriate,
that his child is being transported to the advocacy
center for an interview There are cases, however,
when either there is neither no alleged non-offending
parent that is both parents are involved in the abuse,
or the departnent is unsure that the non-offending
parent would be cooperative and we do not want to
provi de notice to them

As the statute currently exists, in order for the
departnment or the OCS to transport a child to an
advocacy center for these interviews, the departnent
theoretically would have to assunme energency custody
of that child and we want to avoid having to assune

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 14, 2005



energency custody in those instances when, after
interview, it is not warranted.

2:17:51 PM

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Kraly how the bill differs froma case in
which a law enforcenent officer renoves a child from what he
consi ders a dangerous situation and takes himto be eval uated.

M5. KRALY said SB 82 covers cases in which there are no |aw
enforcenment personnel available to transport <children to be
eval uat ed.

CHAI R DYSON asked if this law would give an OCS investigator the
sane authority as a police officer

M5. KRALY said SB 82 would give an investigator such authority.

CHAIR DYSON said he is wunconfortable with the words “wthout
notifying parents.” There is a difference between notifying and
giving permssion and OCS has a responsibility to notify the
parent.

MARCI E KENNAI, Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
said that the current practice is to always notify the non-
offending parent. Currently DHSS has the authority to take a
child to a hospital in the case of physical abuse, but it does
not have that authority in the case of sexual abuse. he is
concerned about sexual abuse cases since research denonstrates
that nost children tend to be telling the truth and sending a
child hone to that parent is a concern because the child can be
coached on the way to the advocacy center.

2:20:57 PM

CHAI R DYSON expressed his concern about a parent not know ng the
| ocation of his child. He said even if the parent is the abuser,
the parent ought to be notified. He said he did not |ike the
term "non-offending parent"” because nost abused children cone
fromsingle-fam |y hones.

M5. KRALY said SB 82 addresses Senator Dyson’s concern about
notification and perm ssion and referenced Version \A, page 1,
lines 11-13, as foll ows:

The departnent shall notify the parents, guardian, or

custodian of a child as soon as possible after taking
action under this subsection with regard to the child.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 14, 2005



M5. KRALY said the aforenentioned referent ensures that notice
is provided, but it does not give the departnent perm ssion to
take a child.

2.22:36 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked why a definition of "child advocacy center" is
i ncl uded.

M5. KRALY answered the definition was added to clarify the
function of the center.

2:24.31 PM

SENATOR CGREEN suggested an anendnent to the definition m ght
satisfy the conmttee. She added changing the |anguage would
change the focus of SB 82 since its primary purpose is to
expedite the process of getting children to safety.

M5. KENNAI agreed with Senator Green. The intent of the bill is
to enable the staff of OCS to do investigations.

SENATOR GREEN asked what woul d happen if “w thout the perm ssion
of the parents, guardi an, or custodian.” were del eted.

M5. KRALY answered AS 47.17.064 already uses that |anguage wth
respect to a child believed to have been physically abused. The
bill expands the applicability of the language in this
subsection to include children who are believed to have been
sexual | y abused.

2.28:18 PM
SENATOR ELTON remarked the scope of the follow ng |anguage on
page 2 is very broad:

The state and the departnent, its officers, its
enpl oyees, and its agents are not |iable for civil
damages as a result of actions taken or om ssions that
occurred in the transportation authorized under this
section, except for conduct that constitutes gross
negl i gence.

He said it seens to confer imunity on a driver who hits a
pedestrian while transporting a child.

M5. KRALY explained the imrunity provision was discussed wth

special litigation attorneys. She is unfamliar wth the wording
and woul d get back to the commttee with an expl anati on.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- February 14, 2005



SENATOR ELTON asked if placing a child on a plane bound for a
city with a regional center would constitute taking energency
custody of that child.

2:31:21 PM

M5. KRALY replied there are specifically delineated tinmes when
the departnment is allowed to take energency custody. She said
the DOL could determ ne that an emergency exists, take custody,
and then later explain it to a judge. The DOL would seek to
obtain energency custody to take a child out of a village or
rural area.

2:32:53 PM

SENATOR CGREEN asked what “not Iliable for civil damages as a
result of actions taken or omssions that occurred in the
transportation authorized under this section” on page 2, line 5
nmeans.

M5. KRALY explained if the state has custody of a child and if
while transporting the child there is an accident involving a
state enployee, the bill would not subject the state enployee to
liability.

SENATOR CGREEN said that is why there is insurance.

M5. KRALY said she is wunfamliar with why that particular
wording is in SB 82.

2:36: 24 PM

CHAIR DYSON said he had assumed, until Senator Elton's
guestions, that this section was just dealing with actions
pertinent to the child in question. In light of Senator Elton's
guestion it seens that it applies to anyone or anything affected
during transport. He asked his aid to have |egislative |Iegal
| ook at this section.

ROSEMARY  HAGEVI G, Executive Director, Cat hol i c Communi ty
Services (CCS), testified on behalf of the Safe Child Advocacy
Center in Juneau and the Alaska Children's Alliance (ACA). She
said the ACA chose this year to try and get child advocacy
centers codified in law. She feels it is inportant for her
organi zation to have a statutory definition of a child advocacy
center.

2:39:53 PM
CHAIR DYSON referenced an anendnent proposed by the CCS and
asked Senator Geen if she is concerned about the wording in the

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- February 14, 2005



proposed anendnent under findings, “no child in Al aska should be
denied access”. He asked Senator Geen if she thinks this
inplies an obligation of the state to either provide these
everywhere or provide transportation for a child to where they
m ght be.

SENATOR GREEN agreed that was a concern.

M5. HAGEVIG responded child advocacy centers are currently
supported in Alaska by federal funding which may not be
avai l able forever. She hopes eventually the state mght enter
the funding schene for child protective services.

CHAI R DYSON said the wording would have to be changed to get the
bill by Senator G een and hinself.

2.:47:18 PM
SCOTT CALDER, Fairbanks resident, opposed SB 82 and SB 83. He
said the use of the term non-offending parent in the bill is

flawed. The term "forensic interview' is not defined in the
|l egislation and is difficult to find elsewhere. He does not
understand how children could be transported and tests be
performed on them with conplete disregard for sone kind of due
process with respect to their parents.

2:52:06 PM

MR. CALDER shared Senator Elton's concern about the imunity
provi sion discussed earlier. He is concerned with the use of the
term "energency” on page 2, lines 2-4, and said if state agents
are transporting children, then they are, by definition, dealing
with an energency and the fact that they aren't telling parents
what they are doing with their children does not change that. He
said people associated with child advocacy centers are not
interested in due process provisions and people's rights should
not be taken away from them on the basis of sonebody's
reasonabl e i dea of whether there nay be sone w ongdoi ng.

2:54:51 PM

BETTY ROLLINS said this is the npost dangerous bill that she has
read in a long tine and urged the commttee not to pass SB 82.
She said that lines 9 thorough 11 on page 1 wongfully give
police officers the authority to conduct forensic interviews.
She remarked there was a case in Chio wherein twenty girls were
given a nedical exam against their wll because they were
suspected of being sexually abused and their parents could do
not hi ng because the state had a law simlar to SB 82.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- February 14, 2005



2:56: 57 PM
CHAIR DYSON said SB 82 would be held until the next commttee
nmeet i ng.

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the neeting at 2:58:04 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- February 14, 2005



